
CITY OF LEADVILLE
800 HARRISON AVE.
LEADVILLE, CO 80461

REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA

Tuesday
July 18th, 2023

6:00 P.M. Council Chambers & Zoom

 https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09

Meeting ID: 835 2694 4548

Passcode: 80461

Dial by your location

+1 719 359 4580 US

6:00 pm 1. Call to order of the regular meeting of the City Council

2. Roll Call

3. Approval of the agenda

4. Housekeeping matters

5. Public comments about items not on the agenda

Citizens wishing to speak to the Council on issues not on the agenda are requested to

send a message in the chat section or raise their hand in the participant’s section of

Zoom or in person. Staff will call on the public in order. Comments are limited to

three (3) minutes (not including council questions). Action, if required, will be

assigned to city staff. For matters on the agenda, public input will be heard prior to a

vote being taken on the matter.

6:15 pm

6:20 pm

6.

7.

Consent Agenda:

A. Approval of the July 5th, 2023 Minutes

Department Reports:

A. City Administrator’s Report

B. Human Resources Department

C. Police Department

D. Fire Department

E. Streets Department

F. Animal Shelter

G. Deputy City Clerk - Licenses Report

H. Building Department

I. Planning Department

J. Sales Tax Comparisons

K. Financials

L. Bills

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council
meeting.

1 | Page

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09


7:20 pm

7:30 pm

8.

9.

Presentations and Discussions

A. Economic Development Corporation Update

Action Items:

A. Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023A Resolution Approving a Services

Agreement between the City of Leadville and Metcalf Archaeological

Consultants, Inc.

B. Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023A Resolution Authorizing $3,605 to the

Historic Preservation Commission for expenses related to the Cultural

Resource Survey

C. RootsRx Change of Ownership Public Hearing

D. Ordinance No. 4, Series of 2023: An Ordinance Amending Section 2.40.030 of

the Leadville Municipal Code Concerning the Compensation of the Mayor

8:00 pm 10. Public Comments

11. Public Meetings Planner

12. Mayor’s Report

13. Council Reports

8:20 pm 14. Adjournment

2 | Page



DR
AF
T

CITY OF LEADVILLE
800 HARRISON AVE.
LEADVILLE, CO 80461

REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday
July 5, 2023

6:00 P.M. Council Chambers & Zoom

1. Call to order of regular council meeting at 6:01 p.m.

2. Roll call:
a. Present: Mayor Labbe, MPT Greene CM Thomas, CM Lauritzen, CM Luna-Leal
b. Absent: CM Hill, CM Grant

Staff Members Present: Deputy City Clerk Hannah Scheer, Administrative Assistant Lori Tye,
Planning Director Chapin LaChance, City Administrator Laurie Simonson, Interim Chief of Police Ken
Chavez

3. Approval of the agenda: CM Luna-Leal moved to approve the agenda as amended, and MPT Greene
seconded. All present were in favor.
Agenda Revisions:

4. Housekeeping Matters:

CM Lauritzen: E. 7th has torn up pavement, will not be fixed for a month - asked if there be some water
brought to keep the dust down. Administrative Assistant Lori Tye mentioned it should be done this
week.

5. Public comments for items not on the agenda:
a. Steve Prestash

i. Said the Pledge of Allegiance - many people in the room joined in
ii. Concerned about the dual roles several people hold in Leadville - mentioned that the “under

God” portion was added to the pledge in 1954.
iii. Read a Secretary of State quote about China
iv. Stated that realtors make $35,000 on each unit sold at the Railyard
v. Stated that the Railyard homes are selling for $800,000 and renting for $5,400 and used

$400,000 in CDOT funds
vi. Stated this is accelerating gentrification, taxes are double, the situation is burdensome and is

profiteering off a vulnerable community.
b. Chris Cary

i. Asked for a correction to the minutes from 6/20/2023. The gun show will go forward, the
theatrical gun fight will not.

Regular Meeting 7/5/23 Minutes Presented to CC on 7/18/2023 Page | 1



DR
AF
T

City Council Minutes July 5, 2023

6. Consent Agenda:

CM Lauritzen moved to remove the minutes of June 6, 2023 from the consent agenda, CM Luna-Leal
seconded.

CM Luna-Leal moved to approve the minutes of June 6, 2023 with revisions; MPT Greene seconded. All
present were in favor.

REVISIONS: “Fading West” not “Heading West”

CM Luna-Leal moved to remove the minutes of June 20, 2023 from the consent agenda, MPT Greene
seconded.

CM Luna-Leal moved to approve the minutes of June 20, 2023 with revisions; CM Thomas seconded. All
present were in favor.

REVISIONS: Fix “gun show” verbiage - the theatrical fight is canceled, not the gun show at the gym.
CM Luna-Leal expressed concern having the show or the theatrical fight in the first place.

7. Presentations and Discussions:
a. City Administrator’s Report:

i. e911 board established - St. Vincent’s is the last to sign. Sheriff Speckman, Chief Dailey,
Interim Chief Chavez, Office of Emergency Management Director Claire Skeen,
Emergency Medical Services Director Jeremiah Grantham have been added to the board.

ii. Tory Hoffman wrote a letter to the Mayor and the City Administrator regarding raising
money for injured veterans and police officers.

iii. Interim Chief Chavez gave a summary of the recent events in town:
1. Mountain Bike 100 - The ride-out was on Saturday, there were no accidents or

issues.
2. Tuesday 7/4 was the Firecracker 5k. Signs were put out in the morning, and had

an officer do the lead-out for safety and blocking as they went.
3. July 4th Parade - officer led. Showed support at the airport event as well.
4. 7/6 is the first summer concert at Zaits Park - the police department will be there

as well.
5. Commented that there would be less calls about fireworks if there were no

firework stands in the City/County. Some homes burned down in Denver this last
weekend due to fireworks. Having fireworks in such close proximity to homes
and trees could be catastrophic.

b. Dark Skies Ordinance Discussion
i. Luke Finkin

1. Would like to make Leadville a “dark skies” community

2
Regular Meeting 7/52023 Minutes Presented to CC on 7/18/2023



DR
AF
T

City Council Minutes July 5, 2023

2. This would require adapting lighting systems to point down, recommendations
for private property owners to inform how not to contribute to light pollution, a
potential ordinance for new builds with a clause for existing fixtures to be
switched out.

3. There would be some monetary transitions involved, suggested fundraising
events.

4. Can go to darksky.org for more information.
ii. The question was raised if Xcel participation would be necessary.
iii. The City Administrator passed a dark skies ordinance in Moab

c. Colorado Municipal League Conference Take-Aways
i. Hannah Scheer

1. Attendees were genuinely interested in what they could do to make their community
better for their people.

2. The Municipal Court class gave a lot of scenarios with a question and response section
to let people think through our processes and how best we can get resources to our
community and have better alternatives to excessive fines and jail time.

ii. Mayor
1. Decision making in municipalities needs to be non-partisan.
2. Senate Bill 213 was controversial because it preempted local zoning, it was not passed.

There was no partnership involved, no other organizations were asked to participate.
3. Assessed values and how to handle them at the legislative level. A ballot issue coming

out this November, Initiative 303 - changes residential property values. It will be
interesting to see what comes of the assessed values before we have to declare our Mills
in December.

4. One of the managers of DOLA (Department of Local Affairs) was very concerned that
not enough cities and counties were opting in to Proposition 123.

5. Attended a class on the Open Meetings Law - important for City Council not to “reply
all” or reply at all to emails to avoid the perception of having a serial meeting.

6. Social media - be careful of the way you use it.

8. Action Items:

a. Flaming Foliage Relay Temporary Use Permit

CM Thomas moved to approve the Flaming Foliage Relay Temporary Use Permit; CM
Lauritzen seconded.

YES NO Abstain Absent
CM Lauritzen *

CM Luna-Leal *

MPT Greene *

Mayor Labbe *

CM Grant *

3
Regular Meeting 7/52023 Minutes Presented to CC on 7/18/2023



DR
AF
T

City Council Minutes July 5, 2023

CM Thomas *

CM Hill *

b. Ordinance No. 2, Series of 2023: Title 17 - Zoning, Definitions/Table of Uses
Amendments - 2nd reading

CM Luna-Leal moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2, Series of 2023: Title 17 - Zoning,
Definitions/Table of Uses Amendments - 2nd reading; CM Thomas seconded.

YES NO Abstain Absent
CM Lauritzen *

CM Luna-Leal *

MPT Greene *

Mayor Labbe *

CM Grant *

CM Thomas *

CM Hill *

c. Ordinance No. 3, Series of 2023: Title 17 - National Historic Landmark (NHL) District
Amendments, Demolition, Applicability, Site Visits - 2nd reading

CM Thomas moved to Ordinance No. 3, Series of 2023: Title 17 - National Historic
Landmark (NHL) District Amendments, Demolition, Applicability, Site Visits - 2nd
reading; CM Lauritzen seconded.

YES NO Abstain Absent
CM Lauritzen *

CM Luna-Leal *

MPT Greene *

Mayor Labbe *

CM Grant *

CM Thomas *

CM Hill *

4
Regular Meeting 7/52023 Minutes Presented to CC on 7/18/2023



DR
AF
T

City Council Minutes July 5, 2023

9. Council Reports:
a. CM Luna-Leal:

i. $40,000 in grants to mobile home owners to weatherize/modernize home parks
ii. C4 is taking the lead

b. Mayor/Mayor Protem Greene
i. The parade was great, it was nice to see the City and County officials participate.

10.Mayor’s Report:
a. Music at Zaitz Park on 7/6 at 6:00 p.m.
b. Attending Central City Opera opening night
c. 25th Annual Putnam County Spelling Bee at the Tabor Opera House
d. The Sanitation Board is soliciting for a new member.

11. Public Meetings Planner:
a. The Leadville Urban Renewal Authority meeting has been moved to 7/13 at 5:30 p.m.

12. Public Comments:
a. Steve Prestash

i. Commented on corporations making money
ii. Thanked CM Grant and MPT Greene for re-adding the public comment at the end of

City Council meetings.
iii. Attended the Planning and Zoning meeting and no members were there in person, they

were all on Zoom. He would like to see City and County meetings with members
present.

b. Kenneth Chavez
i. As a citizen, he would like to see the City reinitiate starting City Council meetings with

the Pledge of Allegiance.
ii. The Pledge of Allegiance was created to show citizenship, patriotism, and civic duty.

Words are not said in jest, it is a pledge to the country.
iii. We have rights and privileges in this country that others don’t have, the words are not

hollow.
iv. It is standard practice for the House of Representatives and Congress to begin their

sessions with the Pledge of Allegiance. It is also the same for the State legislature of
Colorado.

Adjournment: 8:18 p.m.

5
Regular Meeting 7/52023 Minutes Presented to CC on 7/18/2023



DR
AF
T

City Council Minutes July 5, 2023

APPROVED this 18th day of July by a vote of ___ in favor___ against, ___ abstaining, and ___
absent.

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO

ATTEST:
By

______________________________
Deputy City Clerk

6
Regular Meeting 7/52023 Minutes Presented to CC on 7/18/2023





















STREET MAINTENANCE 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 TTL
SNOW PLOWING

SNOW/ICE REMOVAL

SANDING

TRASH 4 2 4 4 4 4 2 2 4 4 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 54
PATCHING

ALLEY WORK

DRAINAGE WORK 40 16 40 96
SWEEPING/CLEANING

PAVING 48 42 90
SIGNAGE REPAIR 30 30 20 10 6 20 4 120
LIGHT REPAIR

ADMINISTRATIVE WORK 10 10 8 8 8 10 10 10 10 12 10 10 10 10 10 10 156
TTL STREET MAINTENANCE
MISC MAINTENANCE

PARK MAINTENANCE 4 4 4 4 10 10 36
FENCE REPAIR

WEED CONTROL

CITY HALL MAINTENANCE

BUILDING MAINTENACE 20 20
TREE MAINTENANCE

STREET PAINTING 20 20
SPECIAL EVENTS WORK 14 4 4 2 10 34
XMAS DECORATIONS

CEMETARY 4 2 2 4 12
TABOR HOME

TABOR OPERA HOUSE

IN KIND HELP 12 10 2 24
TTL MISC MAINTENANCE 20 10 30
SERVICE & REPAIR

EQUIPMENT 38 40 10 8 10 106
POLICE VEHICLES 10 16 20 46
OTHER

COUNTY ASSISTANCE

TTL SERVICE & REPAIR
STREET MATERIAL SUPPLY

HAULING

REMOVAL

OUT OF COUNTY TRUCK 10 10
TTL STREET MATRL SUPPLY
WORK RECAP

TOTAL HOURS WORKED 60 80 80 60 60 4 70 60 50 70 4 4 2 70 70 70 70 70 70 50 60 ####
ADDT'L SUPERVISOR HOURS

TOTAL WORK RECAP

OVERTIME

PTO 20 20 20 10 10 10 10 100
OTHER

FUNERAL

JURY DUTY

WORKMAN'S COMP

TOTAL OTHER HOURS





Leadville Lake County Animal Shelter
June 2023 Department Report

Quick Stats
4 Adoptions 6 City Impounds 3 Repeat Offenders
2 Surrenders 10 County Impounds 0 Transfers In
1 Adoption Return 6 Unclaimed Strays 1 Transfers Out
8 Holds 0 Bite Quarantine 0 Euthanasias
7 RTOs 4 Rabies Vacs Needed 7 Licenses Needed

To Date (7/14) 133 animals have come through our doors

Events
● June

o 5th Staff training/interview Q&A with ASPCA pros
o 8th LPD Court Case, guilty of 10 counts of cruelty to animals
o 25th Vaccine Clinic with RezDawgs Rescue over 50 animals vaccinated!

● July
o 8th New partnership and transfer
o 12th Art Fundraiser raised over $1,500

● August
o 19th 1:00 - 4:00 pm Yard Sale
o TBD Check Your Chip Event



DEPUTY CITY CLERK
June 2023 – LICENCES REPORT

BUSINESS
- No new updates

LIQUOR
- No new updates
- Vendors can call 303-205-2300 to verify the application is in process if they

are unsure about selling to a licensee while their renewal is being
processed.

MARIJUANA
- JEM Dutch Acres LLC dba Earl’s has applied to renew their Retail Dispensary

License
- RootsRx has applied to renew their Retail Dispensary License and Retail

Cultivation license

SHORT TERM RENTAL
- 4 more people have updated their licenses - doing a manual count to get a

hard number of total licenses - some have not paid for the total amount of
licenses they had last year, which will increase the total count.

- 22 people on the waiting list



Permit on 
Internet list

Permit #
Retired

Permit
Incomplete

Fees/Valuation increased
or Decreased City Building Permits 2023

CO /
COC

Expiration
Date

Account 
Number Type of Construction

Submitted 
Date

Permit
Number

Permit Holder
Applicant/Owner Physical Address Value

County
Fee

Payment
Type

Receipt
Number

CCC
Inv #

R005618 Drywall 1/30/2023 BP2023-01W All about remodeling/Shipman 715 Elm St. $3,000.00 $186.00 cc 13110972

January Totals $3,000.00 $186.00

R006674 3/20/2023 BP2023-02W CO Container Homes 930 Hemlock St $193,200.00 $1,679.00 32913139
R006939 3/8/2023 BP2023-03W Costello West LLC 109 Brooklyn Cirlce $211,190.00 $2,979.00 31612883
R006940 3/8/2023 BP2023-04W Costello West LLC 113 Brooklyn Circle $224,460.00 $3,132.00 31612883
R005940 3/30/2023 BP2023-05W Mtz Altitude Const/Sustos 301 E. 8th $9,670.00 $253.00 40613327

March Totals $638,520.00 $8,043.00

R006400 4/4/2023 BP2023-06W Blackwell/Blackwell 428 E 7th St $338,490.00 $4,449.00 40613327

April Totals $338,490.00 $4,449.00

R006941 Duplex 5/24/2023 BP2023-08W Costello West LLC 117 Brooklyn Circle $223,680.00 $1,893.00 3047 52414907
R006942 Duplex 5/24/2023 BP2023-09W Costello West LLC 121 Brooklyn Circle $223,680.00 $1,893.00 106 52414907
R006943 Duplex 5/24/2023 BP2023-10W Costello West LLC 125 Brooklyn Circle $220,540.00 $1,871.00 105 52414907
R007110 Basement conversion to ADU 5/9/2023 BP2023-11W Torre Form/Noe Torre 701 Clarendon $225,100.00 $3,139.00 1098 51614764

May Totals $893,000.00 $8,796.00

R006252 Foundation Repair 6/12/2023 BP2023-12W Aspen Foundations/Nab 200 West 6th St $90,000.00 $1,546.00 61215496
R005840 Remodel/Repair 6/12/2023 BP2023-13W KW/Askins 228 E 7th St $32,400.00 $666.00 61215502

R005605
Mod Set w/ 2 floors unfinished 
space 6/16/2023 BP2023-07W Torre Form/Gonzales 724 Elm $469,010.00 $3,610.00 1093 62215801

June Totals $591,410.00 $5,822.00



City Permit Fee Totals 2023

2023
Building

Permit Fee
Plumbing
Permits

Mechanical 
Permits

Roofing
Permits

Solar
Permits

Plan Review 
Only Total

County's
25%

CCC's
75%

CCC
Misc.

City
Misc.

Building
Valuation

January $186.00 $0.00 $916.00 $0.00 $150.00 $1,252.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00
February $0.00 $127.00 $260.00 $0.00 $300.00 $1,091.00 $1,778.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
March $8,043.00 $342.00 $114.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,499.00 $0.00 $0.00 $638,520.00
April $4,449.00 $50.00 $390.00 $194.00 $150.00 $2,347.00 $7,580.00 $0.00 $0.00 $338,490.00
May $8,796.00 $150.00 $196.00 $804.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,946.00 $0.00 $0.00 $893,000.00
June $5,822.00 $298.00 $556.00 $1,979.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,655.00 $0.00 $0.00 $591,410.00
July $0.00
August $0.00
September $0.00
October $0.00
November $0.00
December $0.00
Totals $27,296.00 $967.00 $2,432.00 $2,977.00 $600.00 $3,438.00 $37,710.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,464,420.00

Total of all permits $37,710.00

Total of Ancillary Permits $6,976.00



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 9A 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

 
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023: A Resolution Approving a Services Agreement 
between the City of Leadville and Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. 

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator; Lori Tye, Historic Preservation Commission staff 
 

           ORDINANCE 
 X RESOLUTION 
 MOTION 
 INFORMATION 

 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023, (the “Resolution”), which 
approves a contract between the City of Leadville (“City”) and Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, 
Inc. for professional services. The contract is for professional services, a Cultural Resource Survey of 
West End Residential area of the City’s National Historic Landmark Overlay District (“NHL District”).  

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

The Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) would like to hire Metcalf Archaeological 
Consultants, Inc. to conduct a reconnaissance level survey of the historic resources in the West End 
Residential area, along E 8th and 9th Streets. The survey will provide a better understanding of the 
integrity and contributing status of buildings within the National Historic Landmark District. The 
2015 Comprehensive Plan identified the West End Residential area as a “Priority One Survey 
project” and recommended completion of a reconnaissance level survey within five years. 
 

The HPC has applied for, and received, the following grants to fund this project:  
Certified Local Government (CLG) subgrant - $25,000.00, with a local match of $8,105 
Lake County Community Fund grant - $3,000.00 
Visit Leadville-Twin Lakes Tourism Panel grant - $1,500.00 
 

Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. bid on this project last December, the bid was $29,357; 
Cost of flyers to alert city residents regarding the START of the project & associated public meetings 
is $1,248.94; 
Cost of flyers to alert city residents regarding the RESULTS of the project & associated public 
meetings is $1,248.94; 
Cost of Translation services (English to Spanish) for flyers and for survey report is $1,250.00 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Total estimated cost of this first survey project is $33,104.88 and we have received $29,500 in 
grants, leaving $3,604.88.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

While the contract with Metcalf ($29,357) is fully grant funded, the HPC will be asking for $3,605 from 
City Council to reach the total cost of the West End Residential survey project. City to pay consultant, 
then reimbursed by the CLG grant funds, other funds have been received. 

IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 

N/A 

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The HPC is committed to getting the “Priority One” areas surveyed as recommended in the 2015 
Comprehensive Plan. They are currently working on other grant opportunities and will be applying for a 
larger grant from State Historical Fund in October, which requires a 25% match. These surveys will be 
instrumental in processing Certificate of Appropriateness’ and determining if a structure is historic or non-
historic and contributing or non-contributing to our National Historic District. Staff recommends that City 
Council approve Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023. 

VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:  
Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Resolution. 
2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments. 
3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VII. PROPOSED MOTION: 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023, A Resolution Approving a Services Agreement 
between the City of Leadville and Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc.” 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023 and copy of Services Agreement with Metcalf 
Archaeological Consultants, Inc. 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 14 

SERIES OF 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
LEADVILLE AND METCALF ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONSULTANTS, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, The Historic Preservation Commission would like to hire Metcalf Archaeological 

Consultant, Inc. to conduct a reconnaissance level cultural resource survey of the west end residential 
area; and 

 
WHEREAS, Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. has submitted, and been awarded, a bid as 

a qualified and experienced consulting firm; and 
 
WHEREAS, The survey will provide a better understanding of the integrity and contributing 

status of buildings. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, as follows: 
 
 The City Council hereby:  

 
(a) Authorizes the City Administrator, on behalf of the City of Leadville’s Historic Preservation 

Commission, to enter into a contract for professional services with Metcalf Archaeological 
Consultants, Inc. in the amount of $29,357. 
 

  
 
This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.  

 

 

 

ADOPTED this 18th day of July, 2023 by a vote of   in favor,   against,  
  abstaining, and   absent. 

 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
___________________________________  
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 1 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

City of Leadville, Colorado 
SERVICES AGREEMENT  

 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey 

 
THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between 

the City of Leadville, a municipal corporation of the State of Colorado, with offices at 800 Harrison 
Avenue, Leadville, Colorado 80461 (the “City”), and Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc., 
an independent contractor with offices at 11495 W 8th Ave, Suite 104, Lakewood, CO  80215 
(“Contractor”) (each individually a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).  

For the consideration set forth in this Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. SERVICES 

A. Description. Contractor will provide a Cultural Resource Survey for the west end 
residential area of the City (“Services”), which services are more fully described in Contractor’s 
proposal attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. Exhibit A is incorporated into this Agreement 
by this reference. 

B. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall be effective on the date of its mutual 
execution by the Parties and shall continue until contractor completes the Scope of Services to the 
satisfaction of the City or until terminated as provided in this Agreement. The Parties may mutually 
agree to extend the term of this Agreement in writing pursuant to the amendment provisions of 
this Agreement. Either the City or the Contractor may terminate this Agreement by providing the 
other party with advance written notice of termination. The notice of termination shall state the 
date on which the Services shall terminate, which shall be no sooner than thirty (30) days following 
the date of the notice of termination. Within thirty (30) days of the date of termination, Contractor 
may submit a final invoice for all unpaid Services completed pursuant to this Agreement prior to 
the date of termination. The City will pay such final invoice within thirty (30) days of the date of 
the City’s receipt of the final invoice. The City shall not be obligated to pay any invoice submitted 
by Contractor more than thirty (30) days after the date of termination. 

II. COMPENSATION 

A. Payment. In consideration for performance of the Services by the Contractor, the 
City shall pay Contractor an amount not to exceed twenty-nine thousand three hundred fifty-seven 
dollars ($29,357) (“Contractor Fee”).  

B. Method of Payment. Contractor may invoice the City no more often than twice a 
month for Services completed. The City shall pay each invoice within thirty (30) days of the City’s 
receipt of the invoice unless the Parties agree upon another time period in writing. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, upon termination of this Agreement by one or both parties, the City shall pay the 
final invoice pursuant to Section I of this Agreement. All payments under this Agreement shall be 
by check made payable to Contractor. The City will mail payments via first class United States 
Mail to the Contractor’s address listed on the first page of this Agreement. 



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 2 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

C. Other Expenses. Any fee, cost, charge, or expense incurred by the Contractor not 
otherwise specifically authorized by this Agreement shall be deemed a non-reimbursable cost that 
shall be borne by the Contractor and shall not be billed or invoiced to the City and shall not be 
paid by the City. 

III. INSURANCE 

Contractor shall obtain and maintain the types, forms, and coverage(s) of insurance deemed 
by the Contractor to be sufficient to meet or exceed the Contractor’s minimum statutory and legal 
obligations arising under this Agreement. Such insurance shall name the City as a Certificate 
Holder. Contractor shall provide the City with a certificate of insurance prior to the commencement 
of the services under this Agreement, and Contractor shall provide the City a copy of such 
insurance policy or policies upon request by the City. Contractor understands and agrees that the 
City’s insurance does not provide coverage for Contractor. The Contractor’s failure to obtain or 
maintain Contractor’s own policies of insurance for the duration of this Agreement and for any 
travel or other activities related to the Services shall not limit, prevent, preclude, excuse, or modify 
any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations of the Contractor arising from performance or 
non-performance under this Agreement. 

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and its officers, insurers, 
volunteers, representatives, agents, employees, heirs and assigns from and against all claims, liability, 
damages, losses, expenses and demands, including reasonable attorney fees, on account of injury, 
loss, or damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, 
sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, which 
arise out of or are in any manner connected with this Agreement if such injury, loss, or damage to 
the extent caused in whole or in part by, the negligent act, omission, error, professional error, 
mistake, negligence, or other fault of Contractor, or any officer, employee, representative, or agent 
of Contractor, or which arise out of a worker's compensation claim of any employee of Contractor. 

V. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Independent Contractor. Contractor understands and agrees that Contractor 
shall perform its obligations under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as 
an employee of the City. Contractor acknowledges that it is not on City’s payroll or social 
security or tax withholding rolls. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, all 
personnel assigned by Contractor to perform work under the terms of this Agreement shall 
be, and remain at all times, employees or agents of Contractor for all purposes.  Contractor 
shall make no representation that it is an employee of City for any purposes. The Contractor 
shall be solely responsible for all compensation, benefits, insurance and employment-related 
rights of any person providing services under this Agreement during the course of or arising 
or accruing as a result of any employment, whether past or present, with the Contractor, as 
well as all legal costs including attorney’s fees incurred in the defense of any conflict or legal 
action resulting from such employment or related to the corporate amenities of such 
employment. 



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 3 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

B. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Colorado, and any legal action concerning the provisions of it shall be brought in Lake 
County, Colorado. 

C. Integration and Modification. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties, superseding all prior oral or written communications. This Agreement may 
only be modified or amended upon written agreement signed by the Parties.  

D. Notice. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice under this 
Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed sufficient when directly presented to a Party 
or sent via pre-paid, first-class United States Mail, to the Party at the applicable address set forth 
on the first page of this Agreement. 

E. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be unlawful or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

F. Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations of the 
Parties, shall be assigned by either Party without the written consent of the other. 

G. Rights and Remedies.  Any rights and remedies of the City under this Agreement 
are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.  The expiration of this Agreement 
shall in no way limit the City's legal or equitable remedies, or the period in which such remedies 
may be asserted. 

H. Binding Effect.  The Parties agree that this Agreement, by its terms, shall be binding 
upon the successors, heirs, legal representatives, and assigns; provided that this Section V shall 
not authorize assignment. 

I. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to 
or shall create a contractual relationship with, cause of action in favor of, or claim for relief for, 
any third party, including any agent, sub-consultant or subcontractor of Contractor.  Absolutely no 
third-party beneficiaries are intended by this Agreement.  Any third party receiving a benefit from 
this Agreement is an incidental and unintended beneficiary only. 

J. Survival.  Any terms and conditions of the Agreement that require continued 
performance, compliance, or effect beyond the Termination Date of the Agreement shall survive 
such Termination Date and shall be enforceable in the event of a failure to perform or comply, 
including but not limited to the following provisions: Sections IV (Indemnification) and V (A) 
(Independent Contractor), (B) (Governing Law and Venue), (G) (Rights and Remedies) and (K) 
(Attorneys’ Fees). 

 
K. Attorneys’ Fees.  If the Contractor breaches this Agreement, then it shall pay the 

City’s reasonable costs and attorney's fees incurred in the enforcement of the terms, conditions, 
and obligations of this Agreement. 



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 4 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

L. Annual Appropriation.  Consistent with Article X, § 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution, any financial obligation of the City not performed during the current fiscal year is 
subject to annual appropriation, and thus any obligations of the City shall extend only to monies 
currently appropriated and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, debt or liability 
beyond the current fiscal year. 

M. Agreement Controls. In the event a conflict exists between this Agreement and any 
term in any exhibit attached or incorporated into this Agreement, the terms in this Agreement shall 
supersede the terms in such exhibit. 

 
N. Force Majeure. Neither the Contractor nor the City shall be liable for any delay in, 

or failure of performance of, any covenant or promise contained in this Agreement, nor shall any 
delay or failure constitute default or give rise to any liability for damages if, and only to extent that, 
such delay or failure is caused by “force majeure.”  As used in this Agreement, “force majeure” 
means acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of terrorism, unusually severe weather, fires, 
floods, epidemics, quarantines, strikes, labor disputes and freight embargoes, to the extent such 
events were not the result of, or were not aggravated by, the acts or omissions of the non-performing 
or delayed party. 

 
O. Protection of Personal Identifying Information.  In the event the Services include 

or require the City to disclose to Contractor any personal identifying information as defined in 
C.R.S. § 24-73-101, Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of C.R.S. §§ 24-
73-101, et seq., relating to third-party services providers. 

 
P. Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement represent that they are 

expressly authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the City of Leadville and the 
Contractor and bind their respective entities. 

 
Q. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 

of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.  
In addition, the Parties specifically acknowledge and agree that electronic signatures shall be 
effective for all purposes, in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform Electronic Transactions 
Act, Title 24, Article 71.3 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. 

 

 
[signature page follows]  



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 5 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is executed and made effective as provided below. 

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO METCALF ARCHAEOLOGICAL 
CONSULTANTS, INC. 

  
 

By: _______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
 
Printed Name: _______________________ Printed Name: ____________________  
 
Title: ______________________________ Title: ___________________________ 
 
Date of execution: ____________________ Date of execution: _________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 

 

STATE OF                            ) 
COUNTY OF                            ) ss. 

 

 
The foregoing Services Agreement was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______________, 
2023, by _______________________ as _____________________ of ______________________, a 
________________________________. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: __________. 

 

  
_____________________________________ 
Notary Public 
(Required for all contracts (C.R.S. § 8-40-202(2)(b)(IV))) 

 
  



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 6 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
Task A—Literature Review and Archival Research  
Subtasks -  
• Request file search through OAHP  
• Review existing historic documentation  
• Conduct research at City and County offices  
• Conduct research at local institutions and repositories  
 
Literature Review and Research  
Prior to beginning fieldwork, Metcalf staff will conduct necessary preliminary research including 
a review of existing historic documentation in the project area, relevant survey and stabilization 
reports, and any documentation specific to the City of Leadville. This background research will 
provide a basic knowledge of the area as well as results of previously conducted work. Metcalf 
will obtain all available documentation and GIS data from OAHP.  
To adequately evaluate the cultural resources within the survey area, staff will consult relevant 
primary and secondary source materials as well as state developed contexts, web guides, historic  
photos, and National Register documents. The Leadville Heritage Museum, Colorado Mountain 
History Collection at the Lake County Public Library, digital Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, and 
historic newspapers will also be utilized for historic research.  
 
Task B – Fieldwork  
Subtasks -  
• Reconnaissance level survey of 108 properties  
 
Fieldwork  
Metcalf will conduct a survey of 108 identified properties at a reconnaissance level. The 
inventory will conform to the guidelines contained in Colorado Cultural Resource Survey 
Manual: Guidelines for Identification (OAHP 2007). Work will be conducted by Metcalf 
Architectural Historian, under the supervision of Principal Investigator, Jennifer Lee. Additional 
field staff, if utilized, will be directly supervise. Metcalf will record properties using relevant 
forms available from the Colorado OAHP, as described below. At minimum, on-site 
documentation will include locational information, written descriptions of each feature, dates of 
construction, historic associations and/or contexts, and an assessment of each of the seven 
aspects of integrity. Metcalf will include a preliminary evaluation of eligibility following criteria 
established in 36 CFR 60 and the guidelines provided in National Register Bulletin 15, How to 
Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation. Justification for the eligibility or 
ineligibility of a location will be discussed in the technical report with reference to the four 
Criteria for Evaluation (A through D), seven Criteria Considerations (A through G), and seven 
aspects of integrity.  
Each property will be recorded by taking high quality digital images from the public right-of-
way. Photographs will clearly show the subject building. If there are secondary structures 
associated with each site and they are not clearly visible in the image of the main house, 
additional photographs may be taken. Our Architectural Historian will document physical 
descriptions, note current property conditions, and make preliminary recommendations regarding 
the level of historic integrity retained by each property utilizing Metcalf’s digital iPad workflow.  



 
Leadville Services Agreement Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Page 7 of 7 
Service: Cultural Resource Survey  Form Eff. 07-18-2022 

 

 
Task C—Survey Forms and Report Preparation  
Subtasks -  
• Complete 108 reconnaissance survey forms  
• Write technical report  
• Submit draft forms and report to HPC  
• Revise drafts and prepare final forms and report  
• Submit final forms and report to HPC  
 
Following the survey, Metcalf will complete 108 reconnaissance survey forms using OAHP 
templates as noted above. Metcalf has confirmed that OAHP no longer requires a separate form 
for secondary buildings on properties recorded at the reconnaissance level. Primary buildings 
will therefore be recorded on a Historical and Architectural Reconnaissance Form and ancillary 
buildings will be included in a table at the end of the form. Each draft form will be submitted to 
the HPC and OAHP for review. Metcalf will revise and finalize the forms in response to received 
feedback.  
 
Historical and Architectural Reconnaissance Form (OAHP Form 1417)  
 
Metcalf will record each property on a Colorado Cultural Resources Inventory Historical and 
Architectural Reconnaissance Form (OAHP Form 1417). This form is intended to provide the 
basic descriptive record of a single building, structure, or site sufficient to make a preliminary 
assessment of architectural significance and/or identify potential areas of historical significance 
only and will not result in a formal evaluation of historical significance in reference to the NRHP 
Criteria. Data collected for each property will include: legal location, street address and parcel 
information, UTM reference, property name, resource classification, current property owners, 
description of basic construction features, historic function and date of construction, potential 
areas of significance, site photographs, maps, and assessment of integrity.  
 
Technical Report  
 
Following the completion of OAHP Forms, Metcalf will provide a technical report for 
submission to, and approval by the HPC and OAHP. The report will include a cover page, 
abstract, table of contents, list of figures, list of tables, introduction, project background, historic 
context, and site descriptions and evaluations. Completed forms will be included as an appendix 
to the report, as will a complete set of digital and historical photographs, and maps for each 
building. Final deliverables will be submitted in an electronic format.  
 
To achieve quality control and assurance at Metcalf, the North and East End Residential 
Architecture Survey report will go through intensive review by both the project Architectural 
Historian and the Principal Investigator prior to submittal. Review will ensure the report satisfies 
the requirements of the OAHP and displays technical competence, is grammatically sound, and 
is compiled in a manner consistent with the project.  
If Metcalf receives any comments from the HPC or OAHP on the draft technical report, we will 
make the necessary edits and submit a final digital copy.  



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 9B 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

 
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023: A Resolution Authorizing $3,605 to the Historic 
Preservation Commission for expenses related to the Cultural Resource Survey 

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator; Lori Tye, Historic Preservation Commission staff 
 

           ORDINANCE 
 X RESOLUTION 
 MOTION 
 INFORMATION 

 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

Before City Council for consideration is Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023, (the “Resolution”), which 
approves $3,605 for additional expenses related to the Cultural Resource Survey of West End 
Residential area of the City’s National Historic Landmark Overlay District (“NHL District”). The 
additional expenses include mailers to be sent to the community, as well as public meetings, at the 
beginning of the survey process and at the conclusion of the project to share the results. 

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

The Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) hopes to hire Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, 
Inc. to conduct a reconnaissance level survey of the historic resources in the West End Residential 
area, along E 8th and 9th Streets. Cost of the actual survey is $29,357. 
 

The additional expenses that go along with the survey include: 
Flyers to alert city residents regarding the START of the project & associated public meetings: 
$1,248.94; 
Flyers to alert city residents regarding the RESULTS of the project & associated public meetings: 
$1,248.94; 
Translation services (English to Spanish) for flyers and for final survey report: 
$1,250.00 
 
Total estimated cost of this first survey project is $33,104.88 and we have received $29,500 in 
grants, leaving $3,604.88 needed.  

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 

The HPC is asking for $3,605 from City Council to reach the total cost of the West End Residential survey 
project. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 

N/A 

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The HPC is committed to getting the “Priority One” areas surveyed as recommended in the 2015 
Comprehensive Plan. They have received three (3) grants this year and are currently working on other 
grant opportunities. They will also be applying for a larger grant from State Historical Fund in October, 
which requires a 25% match. These surveys will be instrumental in processing Certificate of 
Appropriateness’ and determining if a structure is historic or non-historic and contributing or non-
contributing to our National Historic District. Staff recommends that City Council approve Resolution No. 
15, Series of 2023. 

VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:  
Council may take one of the following actions: 

1. Adopt the Resolution. 
2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments. 
3. Table for further discussion and consideration. 

VII. PROPOSED MOTION: 

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023, A Resolution Authorizing $3,605 to the Historic 
Preservation Commission for expenses related to the Cultural Resource Survey” 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023 



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 15 

SERIES OF 2023 
 

A RESOLUTION Authorizing $3,605 to the Historic Preservation Commission for additional 
expenses related to the Cultural Resource Survey of the West End Residential area. 

 
WHEREAS, The Historic Preservation Commission would like to conduct a reconnaissance level 

cultural resource survey of the west end residential area; and 
 
WHEREAS, With a cultural resource survey, there will be additional expenses to inform the 

public of the survey and hold public community meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Historic Preservation Commission has received grant funding for $4,500 of the 

$8,105 needed for the additional expenses. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Leadville, 
Colorado, as follows: 
 
 The City Council hereby:  

 
(a) Authorizes the expenditure of $3,605 by the City of Leadville’s Historic Preservation 

Commission, to inform the public, via mailers and public meetings, of the cultural resources 
survey and its results. 
 

  
 
This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.  

 

 

 

ADOPTED this 18th day of July, 2023 by a vote of   in favor,   against,  
  abstaining, and   absent. 

 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO: 

 
  

___________________________________  
Greg Labbe, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM #9C
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

______
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023

SUBJECT: Change of Ownership of RootsRx from Robert Holmes, Jr. to Sun Theory SPV
II, LLC, Connor Oman

PRESENTED BY: Hannah Scheer, Deputy City Clerk

_____ORDINANCE
__ __RESOLUTION
_ X __MOTION
_____INFORMATION

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Staff requests that council approve the application for transfer of ownership of a retail medical
marijuana license due to a change of ownership of RootsRx from Robert Holmes, Jr. to Sun Theory
SPV II, LLC, Connor Oman.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Robert Holmes, Jr., current owner of RootsRx dispensary, is in the process of selling RootsRX’s
retail operation to Sun Theory SPV II, LLC, Connor Oman. This sale is a transfer of ownership of
RootsRX. This transfer of ownership requires a transfer of the retail dispensary license.

The following are the requirements by the City of Leadville to obtain a retail marijuana license:

A. An applicant seeking to obtain a license pursuant to this chapter shall file an application by
appointment with the city clerk or deputy city clerk at city offices between the hours of 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on regular city business days. The application shall be on forms provided by
the state and the city, as approved by the city attorney, and shall include all information

1



required by the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code and any additional information requested
by the city clerk if such information, in his or her opinion, is reasonably necessary to complete
the investigation and review of the application.

B. At the time of application, the applicant shall pay a non-refundable application fee, as well as
a non-refundable consultant reimbursement (N/A) fee to defray the costs incurred by the city
for background investigations, legal review, and any other third-party consultant costs
incurred by the city in processing of the application. An applicant shall also submit at the time
of application all applicable license fees, which may be refunded if the application is later
denied or withdrawn.

C. At the time of application, each applicant shall present a suitable form of identification and
the following information, which information may be required for the applicant, the proposed
manager of the medical marijuana establishment, and all persons having a financial interest in
the business that is the subject of the application or, if applicant is an entity, holding a one
percent or more of the issued and outstanding capital stock or other ownership interest of the
entity:

1. Name, address, and date of birth of the owner(s) and any managers of the applicant;

2. If the owner is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other
business entity, the name(s), social security number(s), and address(es) of any officer
or director of the entity and of any person holding any of the issued and outstanding
capital stock or other ownership interest of the entity.

3. A completed set of the fingerprints of each person specified in subsections 1 and/or
2 of this Section 5.44.060(C).

Awaiting Fingerprints

4. A statement of whether or not any person holding any ownership interest in the
proposed medical marijuana establishment has:

a. Been denied an application for a medical marijuana establishment license or
retail marijuana establishment license by the state or any other local
jurisdiction in the state, or has had such a license suspended or revoked; and

b. Been convicted of a felony or has completed any portion of a sentence due to
a felony charge within the preceding five years.

5. Proof that the applicant has paid all application and other applicable fees.

6. If applicant is a business entity, information regarding the entity, including, without
limitation, the name and address of the entity, its legal status, and proof of

2

https://library.municode.com/co/leadville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT5BULIRE_CH5.44MEMAESRELI_5.44.060APLI


registration with, or a certificate of good standing from, the Colorado Secretary of
State, as applicable;

7. An acknowledgement and consent that the city may conduct a background
investigation, including a criminal history check, and that the city will be entitled to
full and complete disclosure of all financial records of the applicant, including
records of deposit, withdrawals, balances, and loans;

8. A copy of any deed reflecting the applicant's ownership of, or lease reflecting the
right of applicant to possess, the proposed licensed premises;

9. If the applicant is not the owner of the proposed licensed premises, a notarized
statement from the owner of such property authorizing the use of the property for a
medical marijuana establishment and authorizing the city to enter the property for
inspection of the proposed licensed premises on a form approved by the city;

10. Evidence of a valid city and state sales tax license for the business;

11. Proof that the proposed medical marijuana establishment will be located in a
location that permits such land use under this chapter and other applicable
provisions of this code;

12. An area map, drawn to scale, indicating, within a radius of one-quarter mile from the
boundaries of the property upon which the medical marijuana establishment is
proposed to be located, the distance between the medical marijuana establishment and
any school or youth and family prevention business, measured in feet. If the application
seeks licensure for a medical marijuana center, the map shall also indicate, within a
radius of one-quarter mile from the boundaries of the property upon which the medical
marijuana establishment is proposed to be located, the distance between the proposed
medical marijuana center and any other medical marijuana center or retail marijuana
store for which a license has been approved or issued, measured in feet.

13. A "to scale" diagram of the proposed licensed premises, no larger than eleven (11)
inches by seventeen (17) inches, showing, without limitation, building layout, all interior
dimensions of the proposed licensed premises, including all limited access areas, areas
of ingress and ingress from the proposed licensed premises, loading zones, all areas in
which marijuana will be grown, stored, manufactured, processed, tested, and/or sold,
and location(s) of all security cameras. Such diagram shall also show the principal uses of
the floor area depicted therein, and shall include separate pages for each floor level if
applicable.

14. A comprehensive business operation plan for the medical marijuana establishment
that shall contain, at a minimum, the following:

3



a. A security plan indicating how the applicant intends to comply with the
requirements of this chapter, the Colorado Medical Marijuana Code, and any
other applicable law, rule or regulation as adopted and amended. The security
plan shall include specialized details of security arrangements.
b. A description of the products and services to be provided and/or sold by the
medical marijuana establishment.
c. A plan for exterior signage that complies with all applicable requirements of
this code, including photographs and/or illustrations of proposed signage.

15. Any additional information that the authority reasonably determines to be necessary
in connection with the investigation and review of the application.

D. A license issued pursuant to this chapter does not eliminate the need for the licensee to
obtain other required city licenses and licenses related to the operation of the approved
medical marijuana establishment, including, without limitation:

1. Any required land use approval, if applicable; (N/A)

2. A city business and sales tax license; and (N/A)

3. Any building permits, including mechanical, plumbing license or electrical license.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

The applicant has paid all the applicable fees. There is no other fiscal impact to the city as a result
of this transfer.

IV. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the council move to approve the application for transfer of ownership of
RootsRX from Robert Holmes, Jr. to Sun Theory SPV II, LLC, Connor Oman; also known as ST
Leadville, LLC dba Sun Theory.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

1. Move to approve the application for transfer of ownership.
2. Move to deny the application for transfer of ownership.
3. Table consideration of the motion and provide direction to staff.

4



VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

“I move to approve the application for transfer of ownership of RootsRX from Robert Holmes, Jr.
to Sun Theory SPV II, LLC, Connor Oman also known as ST Leadville, LLC dba Sun Theory.”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

1. Conditional Approval Letter from the State of Colorado

2. Effective Date of Change of Ownership

3. Retail Marijuana License Application

4. Standard Operating Procedures

5. Marijuana Business License Application Change of Controlling Beneficial Owner (CBO)

6. Sales Tax License

7. Certificate of Good Standing from the Secretary of State

8. Map Layout of Premises

9. Structure Chart

10. Master Acquisition Agreement

11. Asset Purchase Agreement

12. Allocation of Purchase Price

13. Employee Benefit Plans

14. Seller and Buyers Officer’s Certificate

15. Bill of Sale

16. Secured Promissory Note

17. Assignment and Assumption of Lease

18. Lease Agreement

19. Operating Agreement

20. Assignment and Assumption Agreement

21. City of Leadville Business License

22. City of Leadville Payment Receipts for the Following:

i. Business License - $50

ii. Transfer of Ownership Fee - $1000

iii. Application Fee for Retail Marijuana Dispensary License - $2500

5















































































































































































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM #9D
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

______
MEETING DATE: July 18, 2023

SUBJECT: An Ordinance Amending Section 2.40.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code
Concerning the Compensation of the Mayor

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator

_ X __ORDINANCE
___ __RESOLUTION
_____MOTION
_____INFORMATION

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Staff requests that council approve Ordinance No. 4, Series of 2023: An Ordinance Amending
Section 2.40.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code Concerning the Compensation of the Mayor.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) § 31-4-109, the mayor shall receive such
compensation for his or her services as the City Council, prior to the mayor’s election, may fix,
and the City Council, at least as early as the last monthly meeting before such regular municipal
election, shall fix by ordinance the compensation and fees of members of the City Council,
including the compensation of the mayor and councilmembers, for the period for which they will
be elected or appointed if any change in said compensation is desirable. Additionally, pursuant to
C.R.S. § 31-4-109, the City Council shall neither increase nor diminish the compensation of any
councilmember or mayor during his or her term of office.

Currently, pursuant to Leadville Municipal Code section 2.40.030, the mayor’s salary is set at
$30,000 annually. The City Council has held multiple discussions within the preceding six months

1



regarding the amount of the mayor’s salary. The first discussion occurred on May 2, 2023 and the
second discussion occurred on June 6, 2023. At the June 6, 2023 discussion, the council directed
city staff to prepare an ordinance to increase the mayor’s salary. The amount of the increase is to
be determined by the council at the regularly scheduled city council meeting on July 18, 2023.
The increase would be effective January 1, 2024.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

The fiscal impact of this Ordinance is the increase in salary that the council decides is appropriate.

IV. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the council approve Ordinance No. 4, Series of 2023: An Ordinance
Amending Section 2.40.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code Concerning the Compensation of the
Mayor.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

1. Approve the Ordinance.
2. Deny the Ordinance.
3. Table consideration of the Ordinance and provide direction to staff.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

“I move to approve Ordinance No. 4, Series of 2023: An Ordinance Amending Section 2.40.030 of
the Leadville Municipal Code Concerning the Compensation of the Mayor.”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

1. Ordinance No. 4, Series of 2023: An Ordinance Amending Section 2.40.030 of the Leadville
Municipal Code Concerning the Compensation of the Mayor.

2



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO
ORDINANCE NO. 4
SERIES OF 2023

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.40.030 OF THE LEADVILLE MUNICIPAL
CODE CONCERNING THE COMPENSATION OF THE MAYOR.

WHEREAS, the City of Leadville, Colorado, (the “City”) is a statutory municipality;
and

WHEREAS, according to C.R.S. § 31-4-109, the mayor shall receive such compensation
for his or her services as the City Council, prior to the mayor’s election, may fix, and the City
Council, at least as early as the last monthly meeting before such regular municipal election,
shall fix by ordinance the compensation and fees of members of the City Council, including the
compensation of the mayor and councilmembers, for the period for which they will be elected or
appointed if any change in said compensation is desirable; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-4-109, the City Council shall neither increase nor
diminish the compensation of any councilmember or mayor during his or her term of office; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Leadville Municipal Code section 2.40.030, the mayor’s salary is
currently set at $30,000 annually;

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the compensation of the mayor as provided
in this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the salary of the mayor effective as of
January 1, 2024.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF
LEADVILLE, COLORADO:

Section 1. Recitals Incorporated. The recitals contained above are incorporated in
this Ordinance by reference and are adopted as findings and determinations of the City Council.

Section 2. Section 2.40.030 Amended. Section 2.040.030 of the Leadville
Municipal Code, titled “Mayor—Power and Duties—Compensation,” is hereby amended as
follows with strikethrough text showing deletions and bold, underlined text showing additions:

2.04.030 – Mayor – Powers and Duties – Compensation.

* * *
D. The mayor shall receive as compensation for his or her services the annual sum of thirty

thousand dollars ($30,000.00) commencing January 11, 2016 ($
), commencing January 1, 2024, provided, however, that if the city

employs a professional city manager, the mayor's compensation shall be the annual sum
of four thousand eight hundred dollars ($4,800.00) in accordance with the restraints
imposed by state statute. In addition to such compensation, the mayor may elect to
participate in any deferred compensation plan authorized by Section 457 of the United



City of Leadville
Ordinance No. 4
Series of 2023

Page 2 of 3

States Internal Revenue Code under the same terms as city employees and shall receive
as compensation that portion of such benefits that the city pays on behalf of employees if
he or she elects such participation. He or she shall also be reimbursed for actual expenses
incurred by him or her in the performance of his or her official duties as mayor.

Section 3. Severability. Should any one or more sections or provisions of this
Ordinance be judicially determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect,
impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the
various sections and provisions are severable.

Section 4. Repeal. Any and all ordinances or codes or parts thereof in conflict or
inconsistent with this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby
repealed; provided, however, that the repeal of any such ordinance or code or part thereof shall
not revive any other section or part of any ordinance or code provision heretofore repealed or
superseded and this repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any
person for any act done or committed in violation of any ordinance or code hereby repealed prior
to the taking effect of this ordinance.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days
after publication following final passage.

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED in full on
first reading this _____ day of ____________, 2023.

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:

___________________________________
Greg Labbe, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Deputy City Clerk

PUBLISHED in full in The Herald Democrat, a newspaper of general circulation in the
City of Leadville, Colorado, on the ______ day of ______________________, 2023.

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AND ORDERED PUBLISHED,
with any amendments, this _______ day of ___________________, 2023.

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:



City of Leadville
Ordinance No. 4
Series of 2023

Page 3 of 3

______________________________________
Greg Labbe, Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________________
Deputy City Clerk

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, with any amendments, in The Herald Democrat, a
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Leadville, Colorado, following final reading on
this ___________ day of _______________, 2023.



July 2023City Calendar

25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 1 2 3 4 5

7am - LTF Trail 100 Run 

9am - Animal Shelter 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 7am - LTF MTB Camp of 7am - LTF MTB Camp of 

7am - LTF MTB Camp of Independence Day - City 

8:30am - Firecracker 5k

10am - 4th of July Parade

11am - BOCC @ 505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg

4pm - HPC Meeting @ 5pm - Sanitation @ 

6pm - P&Z Meeting - 

1pm - Leadville Municipal 

5:15pm - Parkville Water 

5:30pm - LURA Board 

8:30am - Tourism Panel 

11am - BOCC @ 500 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg @ 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

11am - BOCC @ 505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg

6pm - LURA Board 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat



August 2023
City Calendar

30 31 1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31 1 2

11am - BOCC @ 505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg

6pm - LURA Board 

4pm - HPC Meeting @ 5pm - Sanitation @ 

6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

1pm - Leadville Municipal 

5:15pm - Parkville Water 

8:30am - Tourism Panel 

11am - BOCC @ 500 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg @ 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat



September 2023
City Calendar

27 28 29 30 31 1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Labor Day - City Hall 11am - BOCC @ 505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg

6pm - LURA Board 

4pm - HPC Meeting @ 5pm - Sanitation @ 

6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

1pm - Leadville Municipal 

5:15pm - Parkville Water 

8:30am - Tourism Panel 

11am - BOCC @ 500 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg @ 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat


	1 - 7.18.2023 Agenda.docx
	7C - June 2023 PD Monthly Report
	7D - LLCFR Monthly Report June 2023
	7E1 - Street Dept. Montly Report June 2023
	7E2 - Street Dept. Montly Report June 2023.pdf (2).docx
	7F - Animal Shelter June & July Report.docx
	7G - June 2023 Deputy City Clerk Report.docx
	7H1 - Building Permit Log June 2023
	7H2 - Permit Fee Totals June 2023
	9A Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023
	CCF Resolution No 14, Series 2023 Contract with Metcalf
	I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:
	II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
	The Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) would like to hire Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. to conduct a reconnaissance level survey of the historic resources in the West End Residential area, along E 8th and 9th Streets. The survey will ...
	The HPC has applied for, and received, the following grants to fund this project:
	Certified Local Government (CLG) subgrant - $25,000.00, with a local match of $8,105
	Lake County Community Fund grant - $3,000.00
	Visit Leadville-Twin Lakes Tourism Panel grant - $1,500.00
	Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. bid on this project last December, the bid was $29,357;
	Cost of flyers to alert city residents regarding the START of the project & associated public meetings is $1,248.94;
	Cost of flyers to alert city residents regarding the RESULTS of the project & associated public meetings is $1,248.94;
	Cost of Translation services (English to Spanish) for flyers and for survey report is $1,250.00
	Total estimated cost of this first survey project is $33,104.88 and we have received $29,500 in grants, leaving $3,604.88.
	III. FISCAL IMPACTS:
	IV. LEGAL ISSUES:
	N/A
	V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:
	Council may take one of the following actions:
	1. Adopt the Resolution.
	2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.
	3. Table for further discussion and consideration.
	VII. PROPOSED MOTION:
	VIII. ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023 and copy of Services Agreement with Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc.

	Resolution No. 14, Series of 2023 Metcalf Contract
	CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO

	Metcalf Contract for Services Short Form Services Agreement 2023 with LKS edits
	E. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unlawful or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.


	9B Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023
	CCF Resolution No 15, Series 2023 $3,605 request
	I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:
	II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
	The Historic Preservation Commission (“HPC”) hopes to hire Metcalf Archaeological Consultants, Inc. to conduct a reconnaissance level survey of the historic resources in the West End Residential area, along E 8th and 9th Streets. Cost of the actual su...
	The additional expenses that go along with the survey include:
	Flyers to alert city residents regarding the START of the project & associated public meetings: $1,248.94;
	Flyers to alert city residents regarding the RESULTS of the project & associated public meetings: $1,248.94;
	Translation services (English to Spanish) for flyers and for final survey report:
	$1,250.00
	Total estimated cost of this first survey project is $33,104.88 and we have received $29,500 in grants, leaving $3,604.88 needed.
	III. FISCAL IMPACTS:
	IV. LEGAL ISSUES:
	N/A
	V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
	VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:
	Council may take one of the following actions:
	1. Adopt the Resolution.
	2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.
	3. Table for further discussion and consideration.
	VII. PROPOSED MOTION:
	VIII. ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023

	Resolution No. 15, Series of 2023 HPC Expenditure
	CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO


	9C1 - CCF Transfer of Ownership RootsRx (1).docx
	9C2 - RootsRxTransfer of Ownership Application
	9D1 - 2023 07-18 City Council Communication Form re Mayor's Salary.docx
	9D2 - 2023 07-18 Ordinance No. 4, Series of 2023 re Mayor's Compensation.docx
	11A - July 2023
	11B - August 2023
	11C - September 2023



